

iWay

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS User's Guide

Version 7.0.x and Higher

Active Technologies, EDA, EDA/SQL, FIDEL, FOCUS, Information Builders, the Information Builders logo, iWay, iWay Software, Parlay, PC/FOCUS, RStat, Table Talk, Web390, WebFOCUS, WebFOCUS Active Technologies, and WebFOCUS Magnify are registered trademarks, and DataMigrator and Hyperstage are trademarks of Information Builders, Inc.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, Acrobat, Adobe Reader, Flash, Adobe Flash Builder, Flex, and PostScript are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States and/or other countries.

Due to the nature of this material, this document refers to numerous hardware and software products by their trademarks. In most, if not all cases, these designations are claimed as trademarks or registered trademarks by their respective companies. It is not this publisher's intent to use any of these names generically. The reader is therefore cautioned to investigate all claimed trademark rights before using any of these names other than to refer to the product described.

Copyright © 2018, by Information Builders, Inc. and iWay Software. All rights reserved. Patent Pending. This manual, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form without the written permission of Information Builders, Inc.

Contents

Preface	5
Documentation Conventions	5
Related Publications	6
Customer Support	6
Help Us to Serve You Better	7
User Feedback	9
Information Builders Consulting and Training	9
1. Introducing the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS	11
MUMPS Overview	11
Globals	11
Subscripts	11
Features of the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS	12
Component Information for the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS	
2. Supported Platforms Matrix	13
 Overview	13
Supported Versions	13
Operating Systems	14
Databases	14
Java Development Kit (JDK)	14
Communication Modes	14
Object Types and Interfaces	
Communication Types	14
Operations	14
Data Types	14
Other Functions	14
Known Limitations	14
Related Information for Specific iWay Releases	15
3. Installing the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS	17
Prerequisites	17
Installing the Server Component for the Adapter	17
Installing iWay Service Manager	26

Creating the Sample		
A. MUMPS Adapter Servic	es	
RPCS Invocation		
RPCD Invocation		
Simple Query		
Schema-Based Queries .		

Preface

This documentation describes how to install and configure the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.

Note: This Release 7.0.x content is currently being updated to support iWay Release 8.0.x software. In the meantime, it can serve as a reference for your use of iWay Release 8. If you have any questions, please contact *Customer_Success@ibi.com*.

How This Manual Is Organized

This manual includes the following chapters:

	Chapter/Appendix	Contents
1	Introducing the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS	Provides an overview of the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS. It also describes the features and components of the adapter.
2	Supported Platforms Matrix	Specifies version, platform, and database support information for iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.
3	Installing the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS	Describes how to install the software components that you need to set up and use the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.
A	MUMPS Adapter Services	Describes MUMPS adapter services.

Documentation Conventions

The following table describes the documentation conventions that are used in this manual.

Convention	Description
THIS TYPEFACE or this typeface	Denotes syntax that you must enter exactly as shown.
this typeface	Represents a placeholder (or variable), a cross-reference, or an important term. It may also indicate a button, menu item, or dialog box option that you can click or select.
underscore	Indicates a default setting.

Convention	Description
Key + Key	Indicates keys that you must press simultaneously.
{}	Indicates two or three choices. Type one of them, not the braces.
	Separates mutually exclusive choices in syntax. Type one of them, not the symbol.
	Indicates that you can enter a parameter multiple times. Type only the parameter, not the ellipsis ().
· ·	Indicates that there are (or could be) intervening or additional commands.

Related Publications

Visit our Technical Documentation Library at *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com*. You can also contact the Publications Order Department at (800) 969-4636.

Customer Support

Do you have any questions about this product?

Join the Focal Point community. Focal Point is our online developer center and more than a message board. It is an interactive network of more than 3,000 developers from almost every profession and industry, collaborating on solutions and sharing tips and techniques. Access Focal Point at http://forums.informationbuilders.com/eve/forums.

You can also access support services electronically, 24 hours a day, with InfoResponse Online. InfoResponse Online is accessible through our website, *http:// www.informationbuilders.com*. It connects you to the tracking system and known-problem database at the Information Builders support center. Registered users can open, update, and view the status of cases in the tracking system and read descriptions of reported software issues. New users can register immediately for this service. The technical support section of *http://www.informationbuilders.com* also provides usage techniques, diagnostic tips, and answers to frequently asked questions.

Call Information Builders Customer Support Services (CSS) at (800) 736-6130 or (212) 736-6130. Customer Support Consultants are available Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. EST to address all your questions. Information Builders consultants can also give you general guidance regarding product capabilities and documentation. Please be ready to provide your six-digit site code number (*xxxx.xx*) when you call.

To learn about the full range of available support services, ask your Information Builders representative about InfoResponse Online, or call (800) 969-INFO.

Help Us to Serve You Better

To help our consultants answer your questions effectively, be prepared to provide specifications and sample files and to answer questions about errors and problems.

The following tables list the environment information our consultants require.

Platform	
Operating System	
OS Version	
JVM Vendor	
JVM Version	

The following table lists the deployment information our consultants require.

Adapter Deployment	For example, JCA, Business Services Provider, iWay Service Manager
Container	For example, WebSphere
Version	
Enterprise Information System (EIS) - if any	
EIS Release Level	
EIS Service Pack	
EIS Platform	

The following table lists iWay-related information needed by our consultants.

iWay Adapter	
iWay Release Level	
iWay Patch	

The following table lists additional questions to help us serve you better.

Request/Question	Error/Problem Details or Information
Did the problem arise through a service or event?	
Provide usage scenarios or summarize the application that produces the problem.	
When did the problem start?	
Can you reproduce this problem consistently?	
Describe the problem.	
Describe the steps to reproduce the problem.	
Specify the error message(s).	
Any change in the application environment: software configuration, EIS/database configuration, application, and so forth?	
Under what circumstance does the problem <i>not</i> occur?	

The following is a list of error/problem files that might be applicable.

- Input documents (XML instance, XML schema, non-XML documents)
- ❑ Transformation files
- Error screen shots
- Error output files
- Trace files
- Service Manager package to reproduce problem
- Custom functions and agents in use
- Diagnostic Zip
- Transaction log

For information on tracing, see the iWay Service Manager User's Guide.

User Feedback

In an effort to produce effective documentation, the Technical Content Management staff welcomes your opinions regarding this document. Please use the Reader Comments form at the end of this document to communicate your feedback to us or to suggest changes that will support improvements to our documentation. You can also contact us through our website, *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com/connections.asp.*

Thank you, in advance, for your comments.

Information Builders Consulting and Training

Interested in training? Information Builders Education Department offers a wide variety of training courses for this and other Information Builders products.

For information on course descriptions, locations, and dates, or to register for classes, visit our website (*http://education.informationbuilders.com*) or call (800) 969-INFO to speak to an Education Representative.

Chapter

Introducing the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS

This section provides an overview of the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS. It also describes the features and components of the adapter.

In this chapter:

- MUMPS Overview
- Features of the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS
- Component Information for the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS

MUMPS Overview

MUMPS (Massachusetts General Hospital Utility Multi-Programming System), or alternatively **M**, is a programming language, originally for use in the healthcare industry. It was designed for the production of multi-user database-driven applications. MUMPS is a language intended and designed to build database applications. The original implementations were interpreted, though newer implementations may be fully or partially compiled. Database interaction is transparently built into the language. The MUMPS language assumes the presence of a MUMPS hierarchical structure.

Globals

Variables using permanent storage are called Globals in MUMPS. Globals represent data as persistent sparse arrays, giving the MUMPS database the characteristics of a document-oriented database.

Subscripts

All variables (both RAM and disk-based) are hierarchical and can have child nodes (called subscripts in MUMPS terminology). Thus, the variable 'Car' can have subscripts "Door", "Steering Wheel", and "Engine", each of which can contain a value and have subscripts of their own. For example,

SET ^Car("Door", "Color") = "BLUE"

In MUMPS terminology, "Color" is the second subscript of the variable ^Car. Both the names of the child nodes, and the child nodes themselves, are called subscripts. Hierarchical variables are similar to objects with properties in object-oriented languages.

Features of the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS

The iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS is an adapter that provides a means to exchange real-time business data between a MUMPS database and third-party application, database, or external business partner system. The adapter enables external applications for outbound processing with MUMPS. The adapter uses XML messages to enable non-MUMPS applications to communicate and exchange transactions with MUMPS using the following method.

Service Adapter. Applications use this capability to retrieve and manage information in a MUMPS database.

The iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS provides support for:

- □ Service interactions.
- MUMPS object repository metadata browser to build XML schemas and web services to handle adapter requests.

Component Information for the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS

The adapter is comprised of a Server and Application component.

Server Component. The iWay Application Adapter server component for MUMPS communicates with a server-side component that receives synchronous requests for global data through a TCP/IP connection.

Application Component. The iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS works in conjunction with one of the following components:

□ iWay Service Manager

iWay Business Services Provider (iBSP)

When hosted in an iWay environment, the adapter is configured through iWay Service Manager and iWay Explorer. iWay Explorer is used to configure adapter connections and to create web services.



Supported Platforms Matrix

iWay Software is committed to support the diverse environments and varied systems of our users through support for leading enterprise applications, platforms, and databases.

This section specifies version, platform, and database support information for iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS. It is designed to provide a consolidated view of MUMPS releases and the various operating systems and databases, on which they are supported.

In this chapter:

Overview	Object Types and Interfaces
Supported Versions	Communication Types
Operating Systems	Operations
Databases	Data Types
Java Development Kit (JDK)	Other Functions
Communication Modes	Known Limitations
	Related Information for Specific iWay Releases

Overview

INTERSYSTEM CACHE is a NO SQL database, built on top of a pre-relational procedural language MUMPS accessed through the MUMPS listener. The iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS connects to the listener using TCP/IP to retrieve data from an organized set of Globals.

Supported Versions

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports the INTERSYSTEM CACHE version 1.1 MUMPS on Windows.

Operating Systems

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports all of the operating systems that are listed in the *iWay Installation and Configuration Guide* under *Operating System Requirements*.

Databases

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS functions only with INTERSYSTEM CACHE database.

Java Development Kit (JDK)

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS/CACHE supports the Java Development Kit (JDK) versions that are listed in the *iWay Installation and Configuration Guide* under *Java Requirements*.

Communication Modes

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports the following communication mode:

Services. The Services communication mode allows iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS to receive messages from the INTERSYSTEM CACHE MUMPS Server.

Object Types and Interfaces

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports the Globals object type and interface.

Communication Types

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports the Globals communication type, which is synchronous.

Operations

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports the QUERY operation.

Data Types

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS supports the string data type.

Other Functions

There is no known list related to other functions for iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.

Known Limitations

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS works only for the QUERY operation. It does not support CREATE, DELETE, and UPDATE operations.

In addition, EVENTS are not supported by the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.

Related Information for Specific iWay Releases

For more information, see the *iWay New Features Bulletin and Release Notes* documentation for a specific release (for example, iWay Version 7.0.2).



Installing the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS

This section describes how to install and set up the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.

In this chapter:

- Prerequisites
- Installing the Server Component for the Adapter
- Installing iWay Service Manager
- Creating the Sample

Prerequisites

This guide assumes that you have installed a MUMPS or Cache database (Cache utilizes MUMPS databases). If you have not installed the database, refer to the following sample installation procedure for guidance.

Note: iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS only supports InterSystems Caché databases on Windows platforms.

Procedure: How to Install the MUMPS Database

- 1. Run \Install\Cache\CachePCkit_x86.exe.
- 2. Read and accept the license agreement.
- 3. Select the destination folder in which the MUMPS database will be installed, for example, C:\Programs\InterSystems\Cache\.
- 4. Click Install.

Installing the Server Component for the Adapter

The procedures in this topic describe how to install the server component of the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.

Procedure: How to Load the Server Routine

You can find your server files (*.ro) under the directory, \Install\ServerRoutines. Follow the steps below to load your server routine.

1. Right-click the Cache Cube icon located on the taskbar and select System Management Portal.



2. In the System Management Portal Routines dialog box, under the Data Management task list, click *Routines*.



3. Select IWAYS under the NAMESPACES radio button, click *.int, then Go.



You will see **.int* in the Routines text bar.

4. Choose Import under the Routines task bar.



5. In the *Import Routines* dialog box, click the *Browse* button and search for the routine import file.



6. Once the browse windows opens, select the routines import file from the following directory:

\Install\ServerRoutines\IWAYS_ROUTINES_20090928.RO

7. Click OK.

😢 begost Routines - Wedows Internet Explorer 👻 🌚 - 🔛 tegy:/tegs/heat/9772/cg//g/cp.128/Eq/Routine/mport.cg/95148455942Ec3148455	• 17 X If Morent & Line Search P •
File Edit View Favoritas Tools Help	
x Google Open - Windows Internet Explorer	🖏 + 🍥 Sgn In +
Frontes 2 Formes Formes Look in: C Wsers/Dad/Documents/EP/Routines\ C Wsers/Dad/Documents/EP/Routines\	Ghr Sadchew • € With Store Galey •
	seven Dad PC mere CACH W18 mere Bisknowerther Go to
ESPICO	
1000-0000 EXTEST EXTEST EXTEST Tetal 1 Quicoal internet Protected Mode: 011 Qui + Rut011 + Protected Mode: 011 Qui + Rut011 + Protected Mode: 011	
nes Sumuls User Valec	Select Routine Import File
	NES_20090928.RO
	(Click OK)
Done	
🚯 📰 🕿 🖉 🗉 📓 Microsoft PowerRei. 👔 Import Ecutines - W 🙆 Open - Windows Me	Links 🦉 🍓 gadgets 🛛 🖌 🔠 😂 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🕼 🕼 22.04.1944

8. Click Open to view the contents of the file.

An Item box opens displaying a number of existing or non-existing files. Click Select All and choose *Import*.

C Import Routines - Windows Internet Explorer				
😳 💿 - 🛗 http://localhost:57772/csp/sys/exp	p/UtilExpRoutineImport.csp?\$NAMESPACE=IWAYS&\$NAMESPA	ACE=IWAYS	👻 🤣 🗶 ಶ Microsoft ® Live Search	۶ -
Eile Edit View Fgvorites Tools Help				
× Google	🔹 🛂 Search • • · 🦪 • 🥥 🐳 🛛 🚳 • 🏠 Book	marks 🛛 💝 Check 🔹 🐚 AutoFill 🔹 🌛		🔩 🔹 🍥 Sign In 🔹
👷 Favorites 🛛 🙀 🎝 Sign In 🔏 Suggested Sites	💌 💘 MSN 💘 My MSN 💘 MSN Money 💘 MSN Enterta	inment 🏨 MSNBC 👩 Live Search Traffic 👻 🔊 MSN SlideShov	n 👻 🙋 Web Slice Gallery 👻	
the Import Routines			👌 🕶 🔯 👻 📾 🐨 Bage 🕶 Safe	rty 👻 Tgols 👻 🔞 👻
Li break Roules O Marcesrees D Marcesrees D Marcesrees Support	Import routines into namespace IWAY Enter the path and name of the import file: C-UJers/Dad/Document/BiRoutines/WAYS_ROUT Character set: @de/ce Difault> • After selecting a file, press Open to view th Open Select Rems you wish to import from C:\Us Select All. UnselectAll import FERME Path is a selecting of the	YS: TNES_20000 Drowse e contents of the file: eres\Dad\Documents\IBI\Routines\TWAYS_ROU Select All (Click Impo	© + © + ⊂ ⊕ + Epp+ 34 "THES_20000626.RO: "Tf)	ny • Tgols • • • •
	EBAP55-INI NO			
	Select All Unselect All Import			
			Q Local intranet Protected Mode: Off	-

The results of your import are displayed in the following image.

Import Routines - Windows Internet Explorer			
🕘 🕢 – 🛗 http://localhost:57772/csp/sys/exp/	UbiExpRoutineImport.cxp7SNAMESPACE=IWAYS&SNAMESPACE=IWAYS	🔹 🔩 🗶 💕 Microsoft 🖲 Live Search	<u> </u>
Eile Edit View Fgvorites Iools Help			
× Google	👻 🛃 Search 🔹 🧭 🕫 🧭 🗣 🔹 🙀 Bookmarks - 🖤 Check 🔹 🐚 AutoFill + 🍃		🔩 🔹 🍥 Sign In 🔹
👷 Favorites 🛛 🙀 🌌 Sign In 🔏 Suggested Sites 🕯	🝷 📢 MSN 📢 My MSN 📢 MSN Money 🤘 MSN Entertainment 🧌 MSNBC 🔊 Live Search Traffic 👻 🔊 MSN SlideShow 👻 🔊 Web Sl	ice Gallery •	
timport Routines		🏠 🕶 🖾 👻 🖙 🖶 🖷 Bage 🕶 Safe	ty 🕶 Tgols 🕶 🔞 🖝 🦈
NAMESPACES DATABASES	Import routines into namespace IWAYS:		*
%5YS	Enter the path and name of the import file:		
DOCBOOK EBADT	C:\Users\Dad\Documents\VBI\Routines\VWAYS_ROUTINES_200908 Browse		1
EBFIN	Character and Charles Defaults -		
EBPROD EBREG	Character set: Source Desauce		
EBRWRITER	After selecting a file, press Open to view the contents of the file:		
EBSCHED EBTEST			
EBTRAIN	Open		
IWAYS			
PHS SAMDLES	Import from file: C:\Users\Dad\Documents\IBI\Routines\IWAYS_ROUTINES_20090826.RO		
USER	Loading file C:\Users\Dad\Documents\IBI\Routines\IWAYS_ROUTINES_20090826.RO as xml		
VMMC	Imported routine: EBCIRM.INT Imported routine: EBREAD.INT		
	Imported routine: EBSYS.INT		
	Imported routine: EBXPCS.INT		
	Imported routine: EBXPGT.INT Imported routine: EBXPG.INT	Import	
	Imported routine: EBXPS.INT Imported routine: EBXPSS.INT		
	Compiling routine : EBCTRM.INT Compiling routine : EBREAD.INT	Kesults	
	Compiling routine : EBSYS.INT		
	Compliing routine : EBXPCS.INT		
	Compiling routine : EBXPCT.INT Compiling routine : EBXPG.INT		
	Compiling routine : EBXPS.INT		
	Load finished successfully.		
			-
Done) (Q ₁	ocal intranet Protected Mode: Off	a. • € 100% • _

9. To verify that the routines were successfully installed, navigate back to the home page and click the *Routines* link.



10. The server routines were successfully installed if they appear in the list, as shown in the following image.



Procedure: How to Create the Server Configuration Folder

Follow the steps below to create the server configuration folder.

- 1. Create a folder in which to run the server. For example, C:\programs\MUMPS.
- 2. Copy all files from \Install\Server to the new server directory.
- 3. Create a log file directory. For example, C:\programs\MUMPS\logs.
- 4. Modify the IWAY_PF.txt file, so that it points to the correct file locations.
- 5. Modify the SERVER.BAT file, so that it points to the correct location of the Cache install.

Procedure: How to Test the Server Component

Follow the steps below to test the server component.

1. Open a command window and navigate to the folder where you downloaded the server bat files. Execute the server.bat command to start the server and specify the location of the server configuration file. For example:

server.bat c:\programs\mumps\iway_pf.bat

2. In the resulting window, select 1 to start the server and accept all default prompts.

Run *client.bat* from the command window to launch the server test client.

Cach	e TRM:14836 (CACHEWEB	B)	
File Edi	t Help		
[IWAYS]EB.XPSS	Healthy Hospital Medical Center TCP/IP SERVER LISTENERS	09/2
		OPTIONS	
		1) START SERVER LISTENER	
		2) STOP SERVER LISTENER	
Choice	? =>		

- 3. Select Option 1 and verify that you receive a valid namespace list.
- 4. Select Option 3 and enter the following values:

NAMESPACE: IWAYS GLOBAL: PT NODE: 57501~9

Cache TRM:8980 (CACHEWE	8)	
Hie Edit Help		
[IWAYS]EB.XPCS	Healthy Hospital Medical Center TCP/IP CLIENT TEST	09/29/2009
	OPTIONS	
	1) NAMESPACE LIST (NSLIST) 2) GLOBAL DIRECTORY (GBLDIR)	
	3) NODE GET (NODEGET)4) NODE QUERY (NODEQRY)	
	5) START CLIENT AUTO TEST 6) STOP CLIENT AUTO TEST	
Choice? =>		

5. Observe the server and client consoles to ensure that you receive valid data.

```
Cache TRM:8980 (CACHEWEB)
File Edit Help
[IWAYS]EB.XPCS
                        Healthy Hospital Medical Center
                                                             09/29/2009 15
                               TCP/IP CLIENT TEST
                                    OPTIONS
                         1) NAMESPACE LIST (NSLIST)
                         GLOBAL DIRECTORY (GBLDIR)
                         3) NODE GET (NODEGET)
                         4) NODE QUERY (NODEQRY)
                         5) START CLIENT AUTO TEST
                         6) STOP CLIENT AUTO TEST
Choice? => 3
NAMESPACE? [] => EBREG
GLOBAL? [] => PT
NODE (Separate Subscripts by comma "~"? [] => 57501~9
```

Installing iWay Service Manager

For more information on installing iWay Service Manager (iSM) and the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS, see the *iWay Installation and Configuration Guide*.

Note: After installation is complete, ensure that the iwmumps.jar file is located in the <*iSM_Home*>\lib directory.

Creating the Sample

This topic describes how to create the sample namespaces, databases, and data for use with the iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS.

Procedure: How to Create Sample Namespaces and Databases

- 1. On the taskbar on the Windows desktop, right-click the *Cache Cube* icon, then click *System Management Portal* from the pop-up menu.
- 2. Under System Administration in the System Management Portal window, click *Configuration*.
- 3. Under System Configuration in the Configuration window, click *Local Databases*.
- 4. In the Local Databases window, click *Create New Database*.

- 5. In the Database Wizard window, in the field labeled Enter the name of your database, type *IWAYS*.
- 6. In the field labeled Database directory, click *Browse* to navigate to and select the sample path to the named database, *C:\InterSystems\Cache\Mgr\IWAYS*, then click *Next*.
- 7. In the Initial Size (MB) field in the Database Wizard window, type 10, and click Next.
- 8. In the next window, click the Use the default resource, %DB_%DEFAULT radio button, and click Next.
- 9. In the final Database Wizard window, click Finish.
- 10. In the Local Databases window, under Create New Database, select *IWAYS* in the Name column, and click *Edit*.
- 11. In the Maximum Size (MB) field in the Database Properties window, type 50 and in the Expansion Size (MB) field, type 10.
- 12. In the Configuration window, under System Configuration, click *Namespaces*, and then click *Create New Namespace*.
- 13. In the New Namespace window, in the field labeled Name of the namespace, type IWAYS.
- 14. From the drop-down list for the field labeled Select an existing database, click the Associate Database named *IWAYS*.
- 15. In the New Namespace window, click Save. You are returned to the Namespaces window. The newly created namespace, IWAYS, appears in the list of namespaces in the window.

Procedure: How to Load Sample Data

Follow the steps below to load sample data.

1. Right-click the Cache Cube icon located on the taskbar and select System Management Portal.



2. The System Management Portal dialog box opens. Under the Data Management task list, click *Globals*.



3. Select the Namespace, for example, IWAYS, and choose Import from the pull-down menu.



4. In the Import Globals dialog box, click Browse to search for the global import file.



You can find the global input file in the following directory:

\Install\SampleGlobals

5. Click OK.

🏉 Open - Wir	idows Internet Explorer
Look in: C	\Users\Dad\Documents\IBI\Examples\
IIC PT.gbl SP.gbl	
	Find Global Import File (Click Browse) Directory: \ Install\SampleGlobals
File name:	C:\Users\Dad\Documents\IBI\Examples\PT.gbl OK
Total: 3	Global Save Files (.go, .gsa, .gui, .goi) V Calicel

6. An Item box opens displaying a number of existing or non-existing files. Click Select All to ensure that all files are selected and click *Import*.

🕒 🕥 = 🔛 http://locativest/57772/cop/syst	exp:VHDp:Globalimport.cop/SHAMESPACE-EBTEST&SHAMESPACE-EBTEST	🔹 😏 🗶 🦉 Microsoft & Live Search	P
Ele Edit Yiew Egyorites Iools Help			
x Google	🔹 🛃 Search + 🖟 🗉 🥥 🍁 - 👰 + 🧙 Bookmarks - 🚏 Check + 🍗 AutoFill + 🌛		🔩 + 🛞 Sign Jr
🖕 Favorites 🛛 🦛 🏘 Signalin 🍘 Supported St	ns 🔹 💘 MSN 💘 My MSN 💘 MSN Money 💘 MSN Extertainment 🐴 MSNBC 👔 Line Search Traffic 👻 👔 MSN SideShow	• 👔 Web Sice Gallery •	
Import Globals		💁 = 🔯 - 🖙 🖶 = Expr.* Se	lety = Tgols = 📵 =
INTERSYSTEMS Import	Globals Cache Evaluation	Seven Dad-PC Intere: CACHEWEB User: UnknownUser	
[Home] > [Globals] > [Import Globals]		Go to:	•
D NAMESPACES D DATABASES N.SYS	Import globals into namespace EBTEST: Enter the path and name of the import file:		
IOCEDOK IBFEN IBFROD	C:Users/Dad/Documents/IBFExamples/PT gbl Browse		
IBREG IDAWRITER EBSCHED	Character set; <dwce default=""> +</dwce>		
IDTEST IBTRAIN HIS	Open		
IAMPLES ISER IMMC	Select items you wish to import from C:\Users\Dad\Documents\IBI\Examples\PT.gbl: Relet All Unselect All Import		
	Rem Catals Last Modified Select All	4)	
	III - MARE gbl No.		
	≅ ≏PT.gbl No ≅ ≏PTX.gbl No		
	⊠^SSS.gbl No		
	Select All Unselect All Import		C



The results of your import screen are displayed in the following image.

Note: To return to the System Management Portal, click [Home] on the left side of the screen.

To repeat the global import procedures for all .gbl and .go files, look in the ..\Install \SampleGlobals directory and click *Globals* in the Data Management task list.

Home - Windows Internet Explorer				
🛞 🕥 - 🏦 http://localheat.57772/csp-lys/UKIHlerne.csp			🔹 🧤 🗶 🦉 Microsoft & Live Seav	e 👂
Ele Edit Yew Fgvorites Icols Help				
× Google 💽 🛃 Search 🕶 🥩	🗅 - 🧔 🌗 - 🙀 Bookmarks - 🏷 Check	: * 🧏 AutoFill * 🤌		🔩 + 🎯 Signin +
🚖 Favorites 🛛 🙀 🎥 Sign In 🍘 Supported Sites 👻 📢 MSN 📢 My MSN	🖋 MSN Money 💘 MSN Entertainment 🍂 MSNBC	👔 Live Search Traffic 🔹 👔 MSN SideShow 🗢 👸	Web Slice Gallery =	
ta Home			💁 = 🔝 - 🖾 🛞 = Expre	Şəfety = Tgols = 🔞 = 🦷
Home Labout Hellp Logout			Server: Dad-PC Interse: CACHEWEB User: UnknownUser	ĺ
[mane]			Go to:	
System Administration System administration tasks	DATA MANAGEMENT Database management tasks	OPERAT	IONS 1 operation Easks	
Configuration	Classes	 System 	n Dashboard	
» Security Management	× SQL	Backu	p	
* Licensing	» Routines	» Datab	ases	
» Database Encryption	Globals	Proce	sses	
	\	 Locks 		
		> Journ	als	
		 Shado Task I 	w servers lanager	
		 System 	n Logs	
	Click on	 System 	n Usage	
	Chick on	* Licens	e Usage	
	Globals	SP S	essions	
		 Backg 	round Tasks	
		» Diagn	ostic Report	
Done			🔏 Local intranet Protected Mode: Off	42 * \$100% *

The list of Globals in the Namespace appear, as shown in the following image.



To view one of the sample globals loaded in the previous step, select the primary subscript and click the 57501 link.



The contents of the PT Global for subscript 57501 are displayed, as shown in the following image.



Example: Sample Request Document

A request may contain empty Subscript nodes to indicate a wildcard, in which case the service returns all globals in the specified range. If an incomplete set of subscripts is provided, the server assumes wildcards for those subscripts. For example,

would match and return all of these globals:

```
^BI(2,461748,0)
^BI(2,461748,100)
^BI(2,461748,101)
^BI(2,461748,122)
^BI(2,461748,122,1,0)
^BI(2,461748,122,1,0,0)
^BI(2,461748,122,1,0,0)
```



MUMPS Adapter Services

This section describes MUMPS adapter services.

In this appendix:

- RPCS Invocation
- RPCD Invocation
- Simple Query
- Schema-Based Queries

RPCS Invocation

The iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS RPCS service allows you to invoke any M routine and returns the result. The namespace, routine, starting tag, and routine parameters are supplied in the request. The tag is optional. If it is not provided, then the routine will be executed from the beginning.

```
<tns:RPCS location="mumps/RPCS" xmlns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/
services">
        <tns:Namespace>VISTA</tns:Namespace>
        <tns:Routine>DILFD</tns:Routine>;
        <tns:Tag>VFILE</tns:Tag>;
        <tns:Parameters>
            <tns:Parameters>
            </tns:Parameters>
        </tns:Parameters>
        </tns:RPCS>
```

The response is a simple document containing the value returned by the routine.

```
<RPCSResponse xmlns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<Value>1</Value>
</RPCSResponse>
```

RPCD Invocation

The iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS RPCS service allows you to invoke any M routine using the M "DO" statement. The request is similar to RPCS.

If the routine is known to store values in a set of globals, those globals are returned in the response. Otherwise, the response is empty.

```
<RPCDResponse xmlns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
        <Global name="iWay">
            <Subscript>GLOBAL NAME</Subscript>
        <Value>^DIZ(100003,</Value>
        </Global>
        <Global name="iWay">
            <Subscript>NAME</Subscript>
        <Subscript>NAME</Subscript>
        </Global>
</RPCDResponse>
```

Simple Query



Every global node exposes a SimpleQuery service, as shown in the following image.

This service allows you to retrieve sets of globals given a set of subscript conditions. A sample query is shown in the following example. It queries for the set of SP globals with three subscripts, the first subscript of which must be between 77501 and 77009 inclusive.

```
<tns:SimpleQuery location="mumps/EBSCHED/SP/SimpleQuery"
xmlns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:Global name="SP">
<tns:Subscript>
<tns:Conditions>
<tns:gteq>57501</tns:gteq>
<tns:gteq>77009</tns:gteq>
</tns:conditions>
</tns:Subscript>
<tns:Subscript />
<tns:Subscript />
<tns:Global>
</tns:SimpleQuery>
```

A subscript node must be provided for each subscript in the global being queried. Empty nodes are considered wild cards. Any number of condition nodes may be specified for a subscript and are grouped as an "or" condition.

Each condition node may specify a sequence of one or more of the following operators:

🛛 gt

🔲 lt

- 🖵 eq
- 🖵 Iteq
- 🖵 gteq
- follows

All operators within a condition are grouped as an "and" operation.

Unless otherwise specified, the service treats all operands as strings and the MUMPS string comparison rules apply. If numeric comparison is desired, a subscript node may be attributed, as shown in the following example:

```
<tns:Subscript type="numeric">
<tns:conditions>
<tns:gteq>57501</tns:gteq>
<tns:gteq>77009</tns:gteq>
</tns:conditions>
</tns:Subscript>
```

As another example, the following request provides the set of SP nodes with three subscripts whose first subscript is 57501, second subscript is either 60887 or 60981, and third subscript is any value:

```
<tns:SimpleQuery location="mumps/EBSCHED/SP/SimpleQuery"
xmlns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:Global name="SP">
 <tns:Subscript>
  <tns:conditions>
   <tns:gteq>57501</tns:gteq>
  </tns:conditions>
 </tns:Subscript>
 <tns:Subscript>
  <tns:conditions>
   <tns:eq>60887</tns:eq>
  </tns:conditions>
  <tns:conditions>
   <tns:eq>60981</tns:eq>
  </tns:conditions>
 </tns:Subscript>
 <tns:Subscript />
</tns:Global>
</tns:SimpleQuery>
```

A fragment of the response for this request is provided below. Individual subscripts are broken out, but the value is given as raw data only since the adapter can know nothing about its format. Similarly, this service can not translate MUMPS date and time values.

```
<SimpleQueryResponse xmlns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
   <Global name=SP">
     <Subscript>57501</Subscript>
     <Subscript>60887</Subscript>
      <Subscript>32400</Subscript>
      <Value>A^190^5^11080V0000*1102
^2^SCHROELL^^^^^88^60884,50315^35^^^^STOVALLS^60887,30468^^^^511326^^^^
^^1778^^^^7</Value>
   </Global>
   <Global name="SP">
      <Subscript>57501</Subscript>
      <Subscript>60981</Subscript>
      <Subscript>38400</Subscript>
      <Value>A^190^5^11280V0000*1122
^2^MORROWKF^^^^^88^60977,37502^35^^^^STOVALLS^60981,37368^^^^^1711762^^^^
^^^4795^^^7</Value>
   </Global>
```

Schema-Based Queries

Any number of schema-based queries may be added by using the *Add Query* interaction on a namespace node in the metadata tree of the adapter.

👬 iWay Designer		
File View Help		
16 B C X 0 m		
	Nodes	
E C Repositories	Name	Value
Calhost Services	Name	EBSCHED
E V RDBMS	Туре	Folder
ianger MUMPS	Container	true
⊕- ☐ DOCBOOK ☐	Searchable	false
BBADT BEFIN EBEREG BSSC Add Query		-
Apply Filter OTILITY R		

You must supply two XSD files: one describing the subscripts of the global (its key) and one describing the fields that comprise the value of the global. The service assumes that MUMPS global values are delimited strings so the value of the delimiter character must also be specified.

nteraction - Add Query		
Run interaction Enter all information on ea an asterisk are required.	ch step for running the interaction. Fields marked with	Ĺo
General		
Property	Value	
*Query Name	SpHeaderQuery	
Node schema file	C:\jwmumps\\misc\examples\SP_node.xsd	
Record schema file	C:\jwmumps\misc\examples\SP_record.xsd	
Record delimiter character	^	
•		•
	Update	Cancel

Each of the schema files should define a single complex type the elements of which define the subscripts or the fields in the delimited string. The date and time schema types may be used. The adapter will convert the MUMPS values into XSD dates and times and vice versa.

The following is a sample schema file for the three subscripted SP globals:

The schema for the values of these globals is shown in the following example:

```
<xs:schema</pre>
xmlns:xs="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema"
 targetNamespace="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/sample"
 xmlns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/sp"
 elementFormDefault="qualified">
  <xs:element name="ApptHeader">
    <xs:complexType>
      <xs:sequence>
           <xs:element name="INTERNAL_STAT" type="xs:string" minOccurs="0"</pre>
maxOccurs="1"/>
  <xs:element name="TEST_PROV" type="xs:string" minOccurs="0"</pre>
maxOccurs="1"/>
  <xs:element name="VT" type="xs:string" minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="1"/>
  <xs:element name="INTERNAL_SLOT" type="xs:string" minOccurs="0"</pre>
maxOccurs="1"/>
  <!-- ... and so forth \dots -->
  <xs:element name="NO_SHOW_INI" type="xs:string" minOccurs="0"</pre>
maxOccurs="1"/>
      </xs:sequence>
    </xs:complexType>
  </xs:element>
</xs:schema>
```

Once the service is created, it appears at the bottom of the namespace metadata tree, as shown in the following image.



A sample request document for the service is provided below. Subscript conditions are specified using the same format as the SimpleQuery service.

```
<tns:SpHeaderQuery
location="mumps/EBSCHED/SpHeaderQuery"
xmlns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:tns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:tns:tns
<tns:conditions>
<tns:conditions>
</tns:conditions>
</tns:tns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:com/iwmumps/services">
<tns:com/iwmumps/services">
</tns:com/iwmumps/services">
</tns:spHeaderQuery></tns:spHeaderQuery></tns:spheaderQuery></tn>
```

This request returns all appointments for patient number 57501, which were scheduled for 3:30 PM on any date. The following is an example of the response document that is returned:

```
<SpHeaderQuery xmlns="http://schemas.ibi.com/iwmumps/services">
   <Global>
      <SP>
         <ID>57501</ID>
         <DT>2008-10-14</DT>
         <TM>15:30:00</TM>
      </SP>
      <ApptHeader>
         <INTERNAL_STAT>C</INTERNAL_STAT>
         <TEST_PROV>347</TEST_PROV>
         <VT>6</VT>
         <INTERNAL_SLOT>11860V3000*1186 </INTERNAL_SLOT>
         <NO_DOCUMENTATION0>6</NO_DOCUMENTATION0>
         <SCHED_INI_SLASH_TERM_NUM>SCHROELL</SCHED_INI_SLASH_TERM_NUM>
         <CAN OR BMP INI AND TERM>TANJIJR</CAN OR BMP INI AND TERM>
         <CAN_DT>2008-10-13</CAN_DT>
         <DEPT>88</DEPT>
         <NO_DOCUMENTATION1>61278,61076</NO_DOCUMENTATION1>
         <LOC_SHORT_NM>34</LOC_SHORT_NM>
         <CAN REASONS>7</CAN REASONS>
         <NO_DOCUMENTATION7>61282,39201</NO_DOCUMENTATION7>
         <RESCHEDULED_APPT_DT>2008-10-14</RESCHEDULED_APPT_DT>
         <RESCHEDULED_APPT_TM>11:30:00</RESCHEDULED_APPT_TM>
         <SEO>6379</SEO>
         <RESCHED_FROM_DT>2008-10-20</RESCHED_FROM_DT>
         <RESCHED FROM TIME>11:30:00</RESCHED FROM TIME>
         <ORGANIZATION>7</ORGANIZATION>
      </ApptHeader>
   </Global>
   <Global>
      <SP>
         <ID>57501</ID>
         <DT>2009-07-17</DT>
         <TM>15:30:00</TM>
      </SP>
```

```
<ApptHeader>
         <INTERNAL STAT>C</INTERNAL STAT>
         <TEST_PROV>347</TEST_PROV>
         <VT>6</VT>
         <INTERNAL_SLOT>11860V3000*1186 </INTERNAL_SLOT>
         <NO_DOCUMENTATION0>6</NO_DOCUMENTATION0>
         <SCHED_INI_SLASH_TERM_NUM>MCKENZWR</SCHED_INI_SLASH_TERM_NUM>
         <CAN_OR_BMP_COMM>r/s</CAN_OR_BMP_COMM>
         <CAN_OR_BMP_INI_AND_TERM>MCKENZWR</CAN_OR_BMP_INI_AND_TERM>
         <CAN_DT>2009-07-15</CAN_DT>
         <DEPT>88</DEPT>
         <NO_DOCUMENTATION1>61556,50616</NO_DOCUMENTATION1>
         <LOC_SHORT_NM>34</LOC_SHORT_NM>
         <CAN_REASONS>7</CAN_REASONS>
         <NO_DOCUMENTATION7>61557,55720</NO_DOCUMENTATION7>
         <RESCHEDULED_APPT_DT>2009-08-03</RESCHEDULED_APPT_DT>
         <RESCHEDULED_APPT_TM>12:00:00</RESCHEDULED_APPT_TM>
         <SEQ>5595</SEQ>
         <ORGANIZATION>7</ORGANIZATION>
      </ApptHeader>
   </Global>
</SpHeaderQuery>
```

Feedback

Customer success is our top priority. Connect with us today!

Information Builders Technical Content Management team is comprised of many talented individuals who work together to design and deliver quality technical documentation products. Your feedback supports our ongoing efforts!

You can also preview new innovations to get an early look at new content products and services. Your participation helps us create great experiences for every customer.

To send us feedback or make a connection, contact Sarah Buccellato, Technical Editor, Technical Content Management at Sarah_Buccellato@ibi.com.

To request permission to repurpose copyrighted material, please contact Frances Gambino, Vice President, Technical Content Management at *Frances_Gambino@ibi.com*.

Inf%rmation Builders

iWay

iWay Application Adapter for MUMPS User's Guide

Version 7.0.x and Higher

DN3502258.0418

Information Builders, Inc. Two Penn Plaza New York, NY 10121-2898

